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some basic igneous intrusions further down near Shelton. The whole 
river valley from Arklow to Glendalough was oak covered until the 
First World War.at which time heavy inroads were made into the forest. 

Next, a large oak, more typical of that grown on alluvium, was 
seen. Here crown and stem were larger. Questions arose as to its use 
for ship-building. We continued to a park-woodland type growth, 
where stems stood 30 ft. apart, though canopy w.as closed. This was 
the best of the oak so far seen. Suggestions were made as to its 
preservation for seed purposes. 

Ground vegetation, comprising the fern community, was next seen. 
The male fern, sweet mountain fern, lady fern, and hard fern were 
noted growing on acid soil. The prickly shield fern and harts tongue 
fern were noted growing on more neutr,al ground. 

The party at this stage was given some information of the conditions 
under which oak grows here. 1,070 ft. approximately is its present 
upper limit where it grows bent and flattened and only some 12 ft. high. 

Our last site was the location of an old iron furnace. These furnaces, 
we were told, were in use from Elizabethan times when the Earl of 
Stafford introduced commercial smelting and one family carried on the 
tradition amassing profits up to some £lm. until a dispute arose in 
1741 and the industry folded up. Interesting pieces of clinker were 
uncovered at the site. 

After a pleasant tea helped by excellent amenities provided by 
Mr. Healy, Forester-in-Charge, the Convenor proposed a vote of thanks 
to Mr. McEvoy on behalf of the Society. 

G.J.G. 

Excursion to Lough Gill Forest 
A day excursion was held at Lough Gill Forest on Sunday, 8th July, 

1962. Leader for the day was Mr. L. Condon. A small but 
enthusiastic attendance included a party of members from Northern 
Ireland. 

The party visited Hazelwood Property and the first item of interest 
w,as found in C. 11 where a very fine crop of Norway spruce (P / 42) with 
Ash groups at 26' X 26' was inspected. This gave rise to a most interest­
ing discussion on the merits and demerits of 'group' versus 'line' planting 
of hardwoods through a coniferous matrix. Mr. Johnston, Mr. Dallas, 
Mr. McCool, Mr. Haughy and many other speakers contributed to the 
discussion. The general concensus of opinion was in favour of the 
'group' system. On the site in question this system had produced an 
excellent crop of clean stems with well formed crowns. 

The party then moved to a somewhat similar area where oak con­
stituted the hardwood crop constituent. Here the results were not so 
encouraging, but it was felt nevertheless that a satisfactory final crop 
of oak would in fact emerge in time. 
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Further discussions took place on various aspects of pure hardwood 
crops which were encountered on the itinerary. Many views were 
expressed as to the treatments to be adopted. Most views favoured a 
gradual conversion to two-storey mixed forest by the introduction of 
shade-earing conifers under a heavily thinned hardwood over-storey. 

The outing concluded with the usual "tea" and the party unan· 
imously expressed their appreciation to Mr. Campbell, Forester-in­
Charge, for his efforts in making the outing a successful and most 
enjoyable function. 

L.c. 

Excursion to Blessington Forest 
W HEN the members of the Society and their friends met at Bally-

ward property of Blessington Forest on Sunday, July 22nd, 1962, 
it was unfortunate that, due to a number of counter-attractions, there 
was a relatively small turn-out. However, an interesting afternoon was 
enjoyed by all those who did attend, and the rain, which was much in 
evidence all morning, held off. 

The convenor, Mr. N . O 'Carroll, introduced the Forester-in-Charge 
of Blessington Forest, Mr. M. Leonard, who welcomed the party on 
behalf of the Minister for Lands. The leader for the day, Mr. N . 
Morris, then outlined the background details regarding the acquisition 
of Ballyward, and its subsequent growth statistics. Mr. Morris, who 
had obviously gone to a good deal of trouble with his preparations, 
told us that we were having our first stop outside the Property boundary 
so that we could see what the land probably looked like before planting 
and also to give us a good idea of the site with regard to exposure and 
relative elevation. Another valuable innovation was his use of a 6-inch 
O.S. map of the Property, on which we were shown the roadage and 
general layout of the plantations. 

Ballyward, which consists of 520 acres , divided into 19 Compart­
ments, was valued in 1931 at £1 ,960. The whole Property was planted 
up in the years 1932 and 1933 using mainly Sitka spruce, Scots pine, 
Douglas fir , Norway spruce, with smaller amounts of Pinus cont orta 
and European larch. Mixtures were much in evidence, comprising more 
than 50% of the total area planted. 

During the recent Census of Woodlands, the assessment of Bally­
ward was carried out during July and August, 1958. An overall ocular 
estimate of 810,000 Hoppus ft . was arrived at for the Property, giving 
an average volume per acre, at 26 years of age, of 1,557 H . ft. Allow­
ing for an increment % of 10.4, the present volume, less thinned and 
blown material, probably stands at around one million H. ft. 

The Pinus contorta all suffered to a greater or lesser degree from 


